Public Document Pack

Executive
Committee

T 13D REDDITGH 80R0UGH COUNCIL
2822 -

6.30 pm

Council Chamber,
Redditch Town Hall,
Walter Stranz Square
Redditch

B98 8AH



If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Jo Gresham

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Tel: (01527) 64252 (Ext. 3031)
e.mail: joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE MEETINGS

At the current time, seating at the meeting will be placed in such a way as to achieve
as much space as possible for social distancing to help protect meeting participants.

Please note that this is a public meeting and will be live streamed for general access
via the Council’s YouTube channel.

You are able to see and hear the livestream of the meeting from the Committee Pages
of the website, alongside the agenda for the meeting.

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, please do not
hesitate to contact the officer named above.

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS ATTENDING MEETINGS IN PERSON

Members and Officers who still have access to lateral flow tests (LFTs) are encouraged to
take a test on the day of the meeting. Meeting attendees who do not have access to LFTs
are encouraged not to attend the meeting if they have common cold symptoms or any of the
following common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high temperature, a
new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

The meeting venue will be fully ventilated, and Members and officers may need to consider
wearing appropriate clothing in order to remain comfortable during proceedings.

PUBLIC SPEAKING

The usual process for public speaking at Committee meetings will continue to be followed
subject to some adjustments which allow written statements to be read out on behalf of
residents and the virtual participation of residents at meetings. Members of the public are
encouraged to log in virtually, either to speak or observe meetings wherever possible.

Members of the public will be able to access the meeting in person if they wish to do so.
Seating will be placed in such a way as to achieve as much space as possible for social
distancing to help protect meeting participants. It should be noted that members of the public
who choose to attend in person do so at their own risk.


mailto:joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Members of the public who still have access to lateral flow tests (LFTs) are encouraged to
take a test on the day of the meeting. Meeting attendees who do not have access to LFTs
are encouraged not to attend the meeting if they have common cold symptoms or any of the
following common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high temperature, a
new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

Notes:

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council might have
to move into closed session to consider exempt or confidential information. For
agenda items that are exempt, the public are excluded and for any such items the live
stream will be suspended and that part of the meeting will not be recorded.



REDDITGH BOR0UGH COUNCIL
—_— '

Tuesday, 13th December, 2022

Executive 6.30 pm
Council Chamber Town Hall
Agenda Membership:
Clirs: Matthew Dormer Lucy Harrison
(Chair) Anthony Lovell
Nyear Nazir (Vice- Emma Marshall
Chair) Craig Warhurst

Karen Ashley
Joanne Beecham
Peter Fleming

1. Apologies

2. Declarations of Interest
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and / or Other

Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of
those interests.

3. Leader's Announcements

4. Minutes

The minutes of the Executive Committee meeting due to take place on 6" December 2022
will follow in a supplementary pack.

5. Questions on Notice (Pages 1 - 2)

To consider any Questions on Notice submitted for the consideration of the Executive
Committee in accordance with paragraph 16 of the Executive Committee’s Procedure
Rules.

Any Questions on Notice that are submitted for consideration at this meeting will be
published in a supplementary pack.

6. Appropriation of Land off Ipsley Church Lane for Planning Purposes (Pages 3
-12)

This meeting is due to be pre-scrutinised at a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny

Committee scheduled to take place on 8" December 2022. Any recommendations arising
from this subject will be published in a supplementary pack for this meeting.

{. Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Pages 13 - 30)



Executive

10.

Tuesday, 13th December, 2022

Minutes / Referrals - Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Executive Panels etc.
To receive and consider any outstanding minutes or referrals from the Overview and Scrutiny

Committee, Executive Panels etc. since the last meeting of the Executive Committee, other
than as detailed in the items above.

Advisory Panels - update report

Members are invited to provide verbal updates, if any, in respect of the following bodies:
a) Climate Change Cross-Party Working Group — Chair, Councillor Anthony Lovell;

b) Constitutional Review Working Panel — Chair, Councillor Matthew Dormer;

c) Corporate Parenting Board — Council Representative, Councillor Nyear Nazir;

d) Member Support Steering Group — Chair, Councillor Matthew Dormer; and

e) Planning Advisory Panel — Chair, Councillor Matthew Dormer.

To consider any urgent business, details of which have been notified to the
Head of Legal, Democratic and Property Services prior to the commencement
of the meeting and which the Chair, by reason of special circumstances,
considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until the next meeting



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 5
PART 10

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE PROCEDURE RULES — EXTRACT IN
RESPECT OF THE RULES FOR CONSIDERATION OF
QUESTIONS ON NOTICE AT MEETINGS OF THE EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE

Questions on notice

16.3 Subject to Rule 16.4, a member of the Public may ask the Executive
Leader a question on any matter in relation to which the Executive
Committee or any sub-committee has powers or duties.
The Leader may, if appropriate, refer it to another member for answer.

16.4 A member of the public may only ask a question under Rule 16.3 if either:

(@) s/he has given at least 5 clear working days’ notice of the question
to the Monitoring Officer; or

(b) if the question relates to urgent matters, he/she has the consent of the
Leader and the content of the question is given to the Chief Executive
not less than 2 hours before the start of the meeting.

Questions which may not be asked

16.5 The Chief Executive may reject a question

(a) ifitis not about a matter for which the Executive Committee has
responsibility;

(b) is defamatory; frivolous or offensive;

(c) is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a
meeting of the Committee in the past six months; or

(d) the question could more appropriately be dealt with by an officer.
Reading the question at the meeting

16.6 The question will be read out at the meeting by the person who has asked
the question or by another person on his/her behalf. Alternatively,

reference may be made to the Question as detailed in the agenda/ in
printed form.

RBC CONSTITUTION MAY 2012



Page 2 Agenda ltem 5
PART 10

Response
16.7 An answer may take the form of:

(@) a direct oral answer,

(b)  where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or
other published work, a reference to that publication; or

(c) where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written
answer circulated later to the questioner.

Supplementary question

16.8 A person asking a question under Rule 16.2 may, without notice, ask the
Leader one supplementary question. The supplementary question must
arise directly out of the original question or the reply.

Time limit for questions

16.9 At any meeting not more than 5 minutes per question, and 15 minutes in
total, shall be devoted by the Council to the asking and answering of
questions under this rule, provided that the Mayor may at his or her
discretion extend the time if the Mayor and the majority of those present
agree. Any questions remaining unanswered shall (unless the member
who gave notice of the question has indicated that it may be answered in
writing) be dealt with at the next ordinary meeting of the Council, in the
order in which they would have been dealt with at the original meeting.

RBC CONSTITUTION MAY 2012



Page 3 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 13th December 2022

Appropriation of Land off Ipsley Church Lane, Redditch for Planning
Purposes

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Peter Fleming
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes
Relevant Head of Service Guy Revans

Report | Job Title: Bereavement Services Manager

Author | Contact email: michael.birkinshaw@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel: 01527 64252

Wards Affected All

Ward Councillor(s) consulted No

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s)
Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Executive Committee is asked to RESOLVE that

1.1 The Land off Ipsley Church Lane as detailed in appendix 1 be
appropriated under section 122 (2A) of the Local Government Act
1972 for planning purposes

2. BACKGROUND

2.1  Redditch Borough Council as the Local Planning Authority granted
planning permission in accordance with the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) for the
proposal referenced 20/00863/FUL with a decision notice dated 26"
April 2022. This permission was for change of use of land from open
grassland to cemetery including burial of none-cremated and cremated
remains. New vehicular access to Ipsley Church Lane.

2.2 Theland is designated under local planning policy as primary open
space (parks) pursuant to Policy 13, which identifies that ‘Primary
Open Space’ comprises ten different typologies, including Allotments,
Amenity Open Space, Churchyard/Cemeteries/Crematoria, Civic
Square, Indoor Sports Facilities, Parks, Play Area Provision, School
Grounds, Semi-Natural, Sports Facilities

2.3  The Council has statutory powers to acquire and allocate land for
specific purposes including for the purposes of planning. If a Council



Page 4 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 13th December 2022

acquires land for a statutory purpose, it must hold the land for that
purpose until it either appropriates or disposes of the land in
accordance with its statutory powers.

2.4 A general power to appropriate land is conferred on councils under
section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972. Section 122 (1)
provides that a council may appropriate lands

e belonging to the council

e that is no longer required for the purpose for which it is held

e for any other purpose for which it is authorised by statute to
acquire land

2.5  The council can only appropriate land under section 122 (1) if the land
is no longer required for the purpose for which it is currently held. In
reaching this decision, the council must consider the public need within
the area for the existing use.

2.6  Asthe land in question is open space, it is categorised as a ‘special
category of land’ under the 1972 Act and additional provisions apply
under section 122 (2A). There is no limit on the size of the open space
area that can be appropriated under this section.

2.7 Open space is defined in section 336 (1) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as any land laid out as a public garden, or used for
the purposes of public recreation, or land which is a disused burial
ground. It is important to note that the council’'s own designation of the
Land both current and proposed as open space does not impact the
statutory definition provided in the 1990 Act and applied in the 1972
Act.

3. Appropriation Process

3.1 Before appropriating open space land a council must

e advertise its intention to appropriate open space land for two
consecutive weeks in a newspaper circulating in the local area as such
notices were placed in the Redditch Standard on the 16" & 23
September 2022 however the notice on the 16™ of September had an
incorrect email address to reply to therefore this was amended by the
23" and an additional notice placed on the 30" September.

e consider any objections to the proposed appropriation. The initial
deadline for objections was set as the 215 of October but due to the
notice error this was moved to the 28" of October 2022.



Page 5 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 13th December 2022

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

By appropriating the land under section 122 (2A) of the local
government act 1972 the land would be released from any trust for the
enjoyment of the public imposed by section 164 of the Public Health
Act 1875 or section 10 of the Open Spaces Act 1906.

Open Space Provision

As detailed in the planning report submitted to the planning committee
on 13™ October 2021 the site in question falls under the Matchborough
Ward. The most recent Open Space Needs Assessment from 2009
indicated that the Ward has an Open Space deficit of 2.13ha per 1000.
However, the more recently updated Borough & Ward standards from
2011 shows this has fallen to 1.85ha per 1000. It is important to note
that Borough & Ward standards exclude the Arrow Valley Park as it is
classed as a sub-regional facility and has the potential to skew the
local level Open Space data. As such the appropriation of this land for
planning purposes has no impact on the open space deficit for
Matchborough Ward.

Primarily Open Space Provision

The site is designated Primarily Open Space, Parks and whilst the
typology would change under the current change of use permission
reference 20/00863/FUL would remain as Primarily Open Space. This
new typology would be Churchyard/Cemetery/Crematoria.

The National Planning Policy Framework 9NPPF) defines open space
as; ‘All open space of public value, including not just land, but also
areas of water (such as rivers, canals, lakes and reservoirs) which offer
important opportunities for sport and recreation and can function as a
visual amenity’. By appropriating the land for planning purposes and for
the purpose of the planning 20/0086/FUL change of use to a cemetery
would mean that the site would continue to function as an area of
publicly accessible open space of public value.

Redditch Borough Council’s Leisure & Culture Strategy document
comprises details of the Parks & Open Spaces Strategy and
demonstrates a commitment to understanding the current provision,
key issues and priority needs along with the production of management
plans for key sites. The planning decision referenced in 2.1 above
shows that the site will remain designated as open space and therefore
will remain part of the wider Leisure & Culture Strategy.



Page 6 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 13th December 2022

3.6

Objections to the appropriation

Details of the objections are summarised as follows

e 69 people objected 68 by email 1 by letter

of the objections they are broken down into the following categories

Category Number

1 Loss of recreational 60
space

2 Loss of Open Space 38

3 Water logging issues 9

4 Close to housing 2

5 Highways issues 17

6 Groundwater issues 3

7 Inappropriate gradient | 8

8 Damaging the local 25
ecology

9 More people use itnow |1
than will as a cemetery

10 Anti-burial 5

11 Potential increased 2
flood risk

12 Noise pollution from 3
surrounding sites

13 Potential conflict 3
between different users

14 Lack of public transport | 7
links

3.7 ltems 2 — 14 are all items that have been dealt with via the planning

application of the 13" °fOctober 2021 and therefore in granting the
permission the planning authority has satisfied itself that these matters
are compatible with the use of the site. As such they are not matters for
consideration in this appropriation process.



Page 7 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 13th December 2022

4. Loss of Recreational Space

4.1  With regards to the 60 objections that listed loss of recreational space
as an objection the main reason given were as follows

Used for walking with family

Run a dog walking business and use site daily
Sledging in the winter

Kite & model aircraft / drone flying

Paragliding

Running

Picnics

Dog walking

Mental health

4.2  This site being considered for appropriation is 4.60 hectares and is
surrounded by a further 55 hectares within 1 kilometre from the centre
of the site. So, of the circa 60 hectares available to the public in this
area appropriation of this land equates to 8% of the land leaving 92%
still available for recreational use.

4.3  Across the wider Arrow Valley Park there is circa 364 hectares with a
wide range of facilities compatible with its use as a leisure and
recreation facility. Therefore, the appropriation of this land equates to
1.3% of the overall available land and consequently leaving 98.7%
available.

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1  There are no direct financial implications with regards to this decision
however if the choice is made to not appropriate the land, then all
existing expenditure with regards to the potential cemetery site will
have been lost. This equates to circa £60,000

5.2  If the decision is challenged via a judicial review then additional costs
would be incurred by the council.

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1  The main governing instruments for local authority cemeteries
are currently Section 214 and Schedule 26 of the Local
Government Act 1972 and the Local Authorities Cemeteries
Order Act 1977 (as amended)



Page 8 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 13th December 2022

6.2  There is no statutory obligation on the local authority to make
provision for burials so a local authority can cease offering new
full and cremated remains graves although this would not affect
the use of existing graves in current cemeteries in the Borough.

6.3 As stated above at 2.4 a general power to appropriate land is conferred
on councils under section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972.
Section 122 (2A) provides that a council may appropriate lands

e belonging to the council

e thatis no longer required for the purpose for which it is held

e for any other purpose for which it is authorised by statute to
acquire land

7. STRATEGIC PURPOSES = IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

7.1 Living independent, active & healthy lives. The appropriation of the
land would not have any impact on the council’s strategic purposes

Climate Change Implications

7.2  The decision to appropriate land will not have a direct impact on the
council’s climate change commitments.

7.3 As this land can continue to be included in the Parks & Open Space
Strategy it can follow the recommendations made in the report from
September 2022.

e Recommendation 1 requires a better understanding of the
biodiversity of the open spaces within the Borough

e Recommendation 3 requires a clear approach to Biodiversity net
gain and providing a measurable approach to the management
of the land

e Recommendation 5 requires identification of further carbon
capture and natural capital gains

7.4  The commitment made via the planning process referred to in 2.1
above has already demonstrated a desire to enhance the biodiversity
within the local area and not just the site in question and conditions
have been placed on the permission to this effect.



Page 9 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 13th December 2022

8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

8.1 The decision to appropriate land will not have a direct impact on the
council’s equality and diversity commitments.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1 The authority may be at reputational risk if the decision to appropriate
the land for planning purposes is challenged via a judicial review.

9. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

9.1 Appendix 1 — Site Location



Page 10 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 13th December 2022

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Portfolio Holder

Lead Director / Head of
Service

Financial Services

Legal Services

Policy Team (if equalities
implications apply)

Climate Change Officer (if
climate change
implications apply)




7 \ T

Notes:

The Rookery

e e O e -t i T\ N\ :

Home Close Meadow

uder S122 Loc

Site at Ipsley Church Lane - Proposed for appropriation to Planning Purposes
al Government Act 1972, being the area cross-hatched in the plan below

= L

Ipsley House

ARROW VALLEY PARK

Skateboard Park —

Ipsley Court " ‘0‘0‘
SRRRRRKK
A:w%é”g;dg
EHAERK ALK
2%&5#?@&
CRR X IR K KRKKN]
R RXAXR
SRR KX AXA
pRetetetseteletete %!
RIS
S RAIRLERS
S IIREXEERN
SIS
o020 20%0 % 0226 %%%.
Podete 0200 020 %% 0%
02020203 202020 % %%
XX HRIIAIAIRS
! %5 ZRRRHIAKRRRLLL
SELL ZRRIBIIRRLLL
ERIRR XXXXXS S RRLLEES SRR ALXRIKKKS
5% % 5 KRR D te20%0 %0202 % %%
e L RN L SRR |
T R R R ;}0000‘0’023‘000000’:‘::‘&:o’ooe¢‘:‘:’:‘:’:‘:i‘$:2:‘:‘:’:‘:’ |
R R S S R R R IR RN
SR R A SRR IR j
RO e a0 00 0 2 %0 %0 0 00 00 % %0 Y% 00 00 % % % % 0 00 00 20 %0 % %0 00 20 20 20 %0 %0 S0 20 20 202020 %0 e d0 202020 %0 %0 e 20 20 20 %6 e Se e 2% e e
DT T L0t 0 0 00 2 2 2 e 0 00 20 2 202020 00 00 2 20 %0 %0 0 00 20 %0 %0 %0 %0 20 20 20 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 20 20 %020 %0 0 to do te 2020 Y0 o te 2e e %0 o200 2o % %%
LSRRI
2RISR |
000000 00 00 00 7000000690 %6 %6 %0 %6 %026 %% % % % %% %% % %6 %0 %6 %6 %0 0 20 %0 0 0 g g g S e e e e e e e e e e e e e te e tet e e e e e %0 %% B
000D 0 02 2020 %0 00 00 %0 %0 %% %0 00 %0 % Y0 % % 0 00 00 0 % % e 00 20 0020 20 %0 S0 00 20 %0 20 %0 %0 20 20 20 20 %020 %0 te 20 2 202020 e 0 o te i ke %e e e te e %
DO 0T e 0 e e e e e 2 T e T 2 0 2 % 0 T % T 0 U T 0 0 2 e 00 2 T 00 0 2 20 2 2 %0 20 20 %0 0 20 %020 20 2020 0 20 %% 20 e %0 2% %0 20 %
SRR RRRRERESERRERERESIRIRRERILIRIRERLERIIKLERKY |
2T g e T T 0 0 00 2 % 2 e 00 00 0% %0 % 0 00 20 2 %0 %0 %0 00 %0 %0 %0 %0 % %0 %0 00 %0 %0 % 0 0 20 20 202020 %0 D0 20 202020 %0 e 0 20 %0 %0 % %1 L 620 2o 2 2% %!
SRR |
R0 0 e T T T T 0 e T 2 e T e 00 T T T T Tt 0 0 U e T P 0 0 T T T T e 0 2 2 2 2 e 0 20 T 2 2 T 0 20 2 20 %0 %0 %0 20 20 20202020 %0 2020226 %0%0%
e 0 00 00 %0 % % T 00 00 % % % % e 00 0 % % 2 T e 00 00 % 2 T 0 00 00 00 %0 20 %0 0 20 20 %0 %0 %0 %0 00 20 2020 %0 %0 0 20 20 202020 %0 Se 20 2o %0 Vo %e e 2e e %%
D00 0 0000 %0 % % 0 00 %0 %0 % % % 0 00 00 % % % %00 00 00 % % % e 00 00 %0 20 %0 20 00 00 20 00 2020 20 20 00 20 20 %0 %0 0 20 20 20 %0 %0 %0 Y0 20 20 %0 %0 %% e 2020 %% %%
Z5RRRRERRRRERRRRERRRIIERRRKRERRRLKRRRRELRRLLRRRLLELRLRAKIKRKLKY |
o 0T e et e T T T e e 0 e T T P e e T 0 T Tt 0 00 0 T e T T e 0 2 2 Y T e 0 00 0 2 % 2 0 20 20 20 2020 %0 00 20 20 %0 %020 %0 20 20 20 %626 %¢ i 20 20 2020 %%6!
R0 0 0 00 0 % %0 T 0 00 0 %0 % % % 0 %0 %0 % % % P 00 00 %0 %% % R0 00 00 %0 % %0 % 00 00 00 %0 %0 %0 %0 00 00 %0 20 %0 %0 %0 20 20 202020200 20 20 202620 %0 0 20 20 2 % kg e 20 % %%
R R X X X R R RRRRIRIIRRXXXXXY |
q M i
D0 00 0 %0 % % % % % % % 2 % 2 2 2 2 2 e e e e g g g g g g g g g g g e e e e e e e e e 0 000 20 0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 00 0 2 2 2026262026 %% 6% %% %% %'
DT e 0 0 T T T T e e e T T T e e 0 T 2 T T 0 0 0 T Y T T 0 e 0 T % T e 0 20 2 2 2 T 0 20 20 2 2 % T 20 20 20 20 %0 %0 %0 20 20 20 %0 %% %0 20 20 % %6 %00 20 20 %%
R e T 0 T T % T T 0 00 T 2 T T P e B % U ¥ W g 0 0 U g o P e e 0 2 T T 0 0 00 2 2 2 T 0 00 2 2 %0 %0 %0 00 20 20 %0 %0 %0 0 20 20 20 %% %0 00 20 20 %Y o %0 200 %% %
T 0 00 00 %0 %0 % T 0 00 %0 % % % T 0 00 %0 % % % T 0 00 0 % % % P 0 00 %0 % % T 0 00 00 % % % % 0 00 20 %0 % %0 e 00 20 20 2020 %0 0 20 2020 %0 %% %0 20 20 %% S0 e 20 20 %%
00 0 00 00 %0 % % % %0 00 %0 % % % % 0 00 %0 %0 % % e 0 00 00 2 2 o e 0 00 00 2 % % 0 00 00 %0 2 % T e 0 20 2% 20 e 0 00 20 2020 %0 0 0 20 20 %0 %% %0 e 2% g% e e 2o %%
2R ERRRRRRREIERRRRRRRERELRRRRLKLIRERRRELIRRRLRLERRILSLRRKS
RS |
0T 0 e T % % T e 0 e 0 % T T e 0 0 2 % T T P 0 0 2 2 % T 0 0 0 2 % T R 00 00 2 % % Y P 00 00 2 % % e 00 20 20 20 20 %0 20 20 20 20202020 %0 20 20 2% %00 20 20 %% B
000 00 00 % % %0 %0 0 %0 %0 % % % %0 00 %0 %0 %0 % % 00 00 00 % 6% %0 00 00 %0 %0 %0 %0 0 00 20 %0 %0 %0 %0 00 20 20 2020 %0 0 b0 20 20 2020 20 e t0 20 2020 %0 %0 e de %0 1% Yo e te e
e e e e e e e e e e 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 T T e T g e T T T T T T T e e e e e e e 0 20202020 20 20 % e 20 2o 2o %0
e e 0 0 T T T T e 0 00 0 2 % T 0 00 0 0 0 % T e e T g T P e e 2 2 T T e 0 00 2 2 2 T 0 00 20 2 2020 20 20 20 20 20202020 20 20 %0 %6%6%0 %020 11 5% %6%6%0%%
R RRERIRRRREIRRREELIERRRELILIERRERILIIRRILKIRIMLLIKRKY
DO e 0 T T T T e e e 2 % % T e 0 U % e T P g 0 e e T 0 00 00 2 2 T T 0 00 0 2 % %0 0 20 20 20 %0 %0 % 00 20 20 20 %0 %0 %0 20 20 20 %0 %0 %0 0 200 1 2020 Y0 e 20 e
R RRIRELERRRRERRRREERRLKRRRRELKRRRRLIIRLLERKKS
RAREREIRRRERELIRRLLIIRRLLIKKS ZORRRESLILLS LRRLERRLLIRRRLLKY |
L RRRIRIRHRIILIRIRRHKIK &R RRRRHKR OO assesesetesetaseorelivoterotesose’: I
P
D00 e 0 20 202020 %0 e 20 20 2 %0 % %0 S0 2o S SRS SE5RRRLIIIIRRKKL
SRR %5 2020%0% SRR
D0 000020202020 %0 %% %6 %6 %6 %6 %6 %6 %6 %6 %% % oo e e te e e 0 0 00002015 RePe 2o e P00
QORISR S5RRRERLERRLAHIRRKLS
ORISR % 0202020 0020 2020202020 1 20 %% %e %%
N % %00 20 202020 % %0 e 2e e %% %0 0% LRRLLERRLRLEBIIERLRLLKS
RREIIIRIRRIRILELLRRLELKKS 020200 20 202020200 Y e 20 2 %%
B IRSERRIRILIRRIIRRLLL R SRR SRR
00002000 2 20 20202 % % % % %% %% %% %% SR5RRRRRR KKY
ZEERRAASIILRRRLLELIRRLLS LRSS ol
QORI LR 2R
D eS0T 02020 %0 %% 2o 20 %% %% e 2o 20 %! LR IRES
O O T e e e e e e 0 00 200 20 %0 20 20 % ZRRLLLKKR AR
JS RIS LR o
3 ORIRIEILELIRIIIRILKEKE S5 ede!
B3R RRILIRAILILRKS SRR o
LS 00::::’::::::: XXRXK XXXXXIII ’ /
< 1
0020202050 00 202620 % %0 %0 20 %0 % %% %0 20 % SRS !
0 202020200000 202020 %6 %0 20 20 2% % %0 0% 25255RRKS
BRI IRRRRRIIILRRRKS SRXRIIKS |
RS RRREEEEEEEEL SRRLLEEES |
bR IRIRIRIRRRLRHLIKR SRRRRLRKS /
1O 0202020 0 00 20 %% % %0 20 2e %0 % LIS f
KRIERRRELKIRRLLIRRS RRLEELKR '
LRSI LKL |
2000202 20202002226 % %% 0 20 %5 % %" LXK /
KRR L RLSERRLLS ’
A SEREKEERKK KL SRS |
LR RRRRRILR S RIRRRRKS |
0020202620202 %6%6%4% |
PSOLRRELSEEES i
R RRASEIRELRS j
LRESIEHKLIIRKLS j
AIRRLALILKS |
A%\.:"%?’O

Date Rev Details

Project:

Proposed Redditch Cemetery
Ipsley Church Lane

Drawing:

Appropriation - Site Details

Drawn: PTL Scale: 1/2,000 @ A3
Surveyed: os Date: Aug 2022
Drawing No: P2038/51

Engineering and Design Services

Town Hall
Walter Stranz Square
Redditch
Worcs B98 8AH

REDDITCH B0R0UGH COUnGIL
20

www.redditchbc.gov.uk

Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

© Crown Copyright and database rights 2022
Ordnance Survey 100024252

TT abed

g taol epuonyY




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda Item 7

REDDITGH B0R0UGH CoUnCIL
%‘m
Overview
www.redditchbe.gov.uk and Thursday, 6th October,
- 2022
Scrutiny
Committee

MINUTES  Present:

Councillor Bill Hartnett (Chair), and Councillors Imran Altaf, Joe Baker
(substituting Councillor Joanna Kane), Michael Chalk, Brandon Clayton,
Luke Court (substituting for Councillor Salman Akbar), Sharon Harvey
(substituting for Councillor Sid Khan) and Timothy Pearman

Also Present:

Councillor Matthew Dormer — Portfolio Holder for Planning, Economic
Development, Commercialism and Partnerships

Officers:

Peter Carpenter, Kevin Dicks, Claire Felton, Ruth Bamford and Clayton
Maponga

Democratic Services Officers:

Jo Gresham and Mat Sliwinski

48. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES
Apologies for absence were received by Councillors Akbar, Kane
and Khan with Councillors Court, Baker and Harvey in attendance
as named substitutes respectively. Councillor Prosser had also
submitted his apology.

49. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP

There were no Declarations of Interest nor of any Party Whip.

Chair



Page 14 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

50. MINUTES
The minutes from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting
held on Thursday 5th September 2022 were submitted for
Members’ consideration.
RESOLVED that
the minutes from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Meeting held on Thursday 5th September 2022 be approved as
atrue and correct record and signed by the Chair.

51. PUBLIC SPEAKING

The Chair introduced the Public Speaking item and explained to the
Committee that there had been a number of public speakers who
had registered for this meeting and that he had extended the length
of time allocated for public speaking from 15 minutes to 30 minutes
in order to accommodate the extra speakers.

The Chair welcomed Mr R. Rowberry to the meeting, who was
invited to speak to the Committee.

His speech was delivered as follows:

‘I am going to start by saying that this is not about party politics at
all. My point is all about Redditch Library. | do not think that the
Tory Councillors were elected to demolish the Library. According to
the internet, Redditch has got a population of 86,00 people. If you
cut that down to houses, | make that within reason about 30,000
houses. According to my calculations, before the Council has got
actual permission to demolish the Library and replace it with
restaurants, that probably will not work, you need full permission
from at 15,001 houses. If you do not stick to that you are letting
down the people of Redditch.”

The Chair explained to Members that a written statement had been
received from K. Stanton and would be read out by the Democratic
Services Officer present. Her statement was delivered as follows:



Page 15 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

“I have followed the proposals for the demolition and relocation of
Redditch Library closely - it's a subject very close to my heart both
as a library customer and as an ex member of library staff who
spent the majority of my 14 years with Worcestershire Libraries
based at Redditch Library. My time there spanned two recent
extensive (and expensive) refurbishments - the first a full building
renovation and update in 2010 and more recently the works in 2017
to prepare for the co-location of the DWP into the building. Having
seen these improvements first-hand, and also having worked at
other libraries who have co-located services within the library
building (for example, Droitwich Library) or library services that
have moved into buildings housing multiple services (such as
Bromsgrove and Stourport Libraries), | have seen how successful
this model can be - when done in the right way and with the needs
of the customer at the centre of decision making.

This is not the case with the proposals for Redditch Library. As
mentioned above, the library building has twice been upgraded in
recent years. It was originally purpose-built as a library; it is
centrally located at the top of the hill right next to the Kingfisher
Centre - it's already delivering as a library (consistently one of the
best performing in the county). During my time working at Redditch
Library, it was not an uncommon occurrence for members of the
public to come in to the library to ask where the Town Hall was -
located down the hill and tucked off to the side it's far from the
landmark Redditch Library currently is. It was also not uncommon
for people to say they didn't want to go all the way down the hill - for
customers with mobility issues, this added distance could be a real
barrier to them being able to access services and support.

The original reason given for demolition was the creation of a new
public square that would also open up access to the Kingfisher
Shopping Centre. | now see that the current suggestion is to spend
£4.2 million to knock down the library building to replace it with
another building - not considering that in excess of £5 million would
also need to be spent on relocating the library to the Town Hall.
This seems a colossal waste of public money at a time when so
many are struggling financially.

On the subject of the budget - the figure of £4.2 million for
demolition was quoted some time ago, and to the best of my



Page 16 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

knowledge has not been updated to reflect the current financial
landscape. Costs are going up across the board, and | don't believe
that this figure is still accurate.

For the reasons listed above, | object to the proposals. The existing
library is not only ideally situated, but already delivering the high
levels of service that Redditch residents deserve. As well as being a
statutory service, for many the library is an essential service -
especially for the most vulnerable members of our community.
What guarantees are in place that the proposed move would build
on this to ensure, as a bare minimum, that this will be maintained?
When costs inevitably spiral, what cuts and downgrades to the
service will be made? These are questions that need to be
satisfactorily answered - without rhetoric or hyperbole - before any
further action can be taken.”

The Chair welcomed Councillor David Thain to the meeting, who
was invited to speak to the Committee.

His speech was delivered as follows:

“l think the issue with this report is that it is not very thought
through. | think that it is splattered with epithets like ‘a digital town’.
What'’s a digital town? Are we going to copy Bromsgrove? Has
Bromsgrove been so successful? | also think that a project of this
magnitude needs good financial management, we don’t have that. |
think that's where we have the problem, back in January about the
Redditch accounts. The accounts for 20-21 were not then delivered,
and Peter, you can tell us if they have subsequently been delivered
which would mean that we are two years behind on our financial
accounts so the financial planning for this is something that
concerns me greatly. | see a risk of overrun and high risk of
increased costs. | think that we do not have the financial resources
to deal with this and the epithets that are sprinkled around like
‘digital town’ doesn’t ring true with me. My final point, which you
would expect me to make, is that the green aspect is one that has
been totally ignored in the report. | think that there should be far
more made of it, any development we would need a far more green
component than is suggested in this report. So, | am broadly in
favour of it but you are not doing enough to facilitate it in the proper
way. Thank you, Chair.”



Page 17 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

The Chair welcomed E. Tyrell to the meeting. Her speech was
delivered as follows:

“On behalf of my six-year-old son, Ronnie, and myself, thank you
for the opportunity to speak at this meeting which happens to fall
during Libraries Week. | have good relationships with members of
all parties, and people of varying political views; | have never
criticised the Town Deal plans as a whole, but, like thousands of
others, | believe these plans for the library are reckless and
nonsensical.

The Leader of the Council is a businessman so surely it cannot be
too difficult for him to see that spending £5.2m in order to facilitate
spending £4.2m is a little like justifying buying a new kitchen by
saying it doesn’t match your new toaster! He once said to me that if
the library stays where it is, the allotted demolition money would
have to be returned to the government. Even | can work out that
that would result in a saving of £5.2m pounds!

And the savings wouldn’t stop there! The huge environmental
impact of demolition is well-documented. Not only is the current,
purpose-built library still perfectly suitable, it is smart from a recent
£1m refurbishment. How can we call ourselves a ‘green’ town if
these plans go ahead?!

An estimated 30-40% of current library users are ‘incidental’ - that
is, passing trade from the Kingfisher Centre. That slope down to the
Town Hall is a very slippery one then. As we all have seen
countless times before, bad decision-making in library services can
so easily spiral into fewer library users, triggering cuts to services
and so on! Clir Dormer complains about ‘lack of aspiration’ in
Redditch, but what message is he sending out? Whilst our
neighbouring cities of Worcester and Birmingham have recently
built large, stand-alone libraries, Redditch Council is planning the
opposite with our second-most-used library in Worcestershire. Does
Redditch Council really want to be seen to be sweeping this
invaluable education facility down the hill to make way for coffee
shops?



Page 18 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny

Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

If there was a genuinely good reason to move the library, we’d have
heard it by now. Instead, we have heard a string of baseless, often
absurd, justifications, for example mentioning the small amount of
asbestos in the roof which, ironically, would only be a problem
under demolition! It is an insult to the intelligence of Redditch
people to assume that they cannot see that Councillors are
justifying these plans with problems that simply do not exist! And
why, after being told the plans were for an empty space, do the
plans now involve building more units? - We have plenty of empty
units already!

Along with thousands of others, | wholeheartedly object to these
plans. | dread to think how the Council intends to raise £5.2m, and
how it can justify so much waste. | reiterate that | am not against
change nor regeneration, but rather | am in favour of common
sense and against backward steps. | therefore implore Redditch
Council to leave the town centre’s most important facility in the
purpose-built, central, stand-alone, and prominent location it
deserves.”

The Chair welcomed R. Townsend to the meeting. Her speech was
delivered as follows:

“Good evening,

My name is Rosie, thank you for allowing me the opportunity to tell
you what the library means to me.

| have lived in Redditch since August 1976, which is the same year
that the library was opened. | was the youngest of 4 children and
after speaking to my mother, the library was a very important part of
our first years in Redditch. It was the perfect place for her to bring
us children and meet new people. My mother also created a
playgroup by moons moat first school, bringing together people she
met at the library.

| was a regular user of the library during my school years, where |
found a quiet place to study and revise without distraction and with
all the resources needed at my fingertips.

When | became a mother, | would take my children to the library in
the same way as my mother did for us. It was here that | learnt of a



Page 19 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny

Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

group for young mothers — Positively Young Mums, which enabled
me to find people in the same situation as myself and pushed us to
create Y-me which was a group of young mums going into school to
educate teenagers of what life was really like having a baby young.
We created work packs that were purchased by schools far and
wide. Our group managed to make its way nationally and we were
invited to a conference in London to promote what we were doing.

| am now a very proud grandmother to a 2 year old, who has been a
user of the library, albeit intermittent during the pandemic. My
daughter takes her on a Thursday to bounce rhythm and rhyme,
and takes my mother along too, this ensure that the values of the
library from one generation to the next are a shared experience and
gives my mom (elder generation) the ability to get out of her home
to a place that is familiar and welcoming.

The reason | am sharing this - the library is where it all started! It
was and still is a very vibrant and inclusive hub of Redditch, it
caters for everybody, they are all made to feel welcome, helped,
listened to, and assisted through may different avenues. It
provides a safe secure environment, from a prominent position
which is easily accessible by all. The resources it has and the
groups that are held there to support the community are
invaluable. | don’t believe there is an alternative building for this
that would be able to meet the criteria. The library was purpose
built with the necessary equipment and a refurbishment in 2009
gave it the investment required to bring it up to date.

The Town Hall would not be suitable, the costs involved in ensuring
that the archives of Redditch are preserved in the same manner as
they are now do not really make for a viable option. For me the
Town Hall is not a social venue, it is where people go with issues. It
iIs not a central location, been on the outskirt of the town. The
current location of the library is right in the centre of town, giving
higher footfall to the kingfisher centre. Whereas the routes into the
Town Hall, offer members of the public the opportunity to bypass
the centre altogether.

| implore you to reconsider the demolition of such a fantastic
resource, to add more food and beverage shops, when there is
scope to add them elsewhere.”



Page 20 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

The Chair explained to Members that a written statement had also
been received from Mr. O. Hale and would be read out by the
Democratic Services Officer present. His statement was delivered
as follows:

“For a long time there have been two questions regarding the
proposed relocation of the Library to the Town Hall. Firstly, how
much will it cost to prepare the Town Hall and move the library
collections? Secondly, where will the money come from? The
publication of the Town Hall Hub proposals has answered these
guestions. The cost is £5.2m and the source of this funding is
‘capital receipts', which as far as | can tell, means selling Council
assets. The ultimate purpose of the Town Hall Hub proposal is not
to correct any deficiency in the library, but, and | quote, 'facilitating
the use of £4.2m of Towns Funding at the existing Library site'.

| would like to raise three objections to this plan.

1. 1 do not think spending £5.2m to move a popular and purpose
built library a distance of 100 metres can be justified.

2. | do think the environmental impact of demolishing a serviceable
building can be justified. It has been said that the easiest path to
sustainability is longevity. Using a building for longer gives the
best return on the greenhouse gases that were generated in its
construction. The environmental cost of manufacturing building
materials is huge; in fact, the manufacturing sector produces
more greenhouse gases than all forms of transportation
combined.

3. I think it is inappropriate to spend £5.2m of public money to
enable commercial development of the Town Centre to occur.
The aim of relocating the Library is to make space for cafes and
restaurants. The Council will receive a negligible annual net
revenue from rent, estimated at £94,042. | believe that if
businesses wish to open new restaurants and cafes, it should be
the businesses that pay for the construction. In addition, it
should be businesses that shoulder the very real risk that the
commercial units will never be fully tenanted, not the people of
Redditch.



Page 21 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

In summary, | would like to voice my objections to the Town Hall
Hub plan. | believe spending Council money to unlock a
government grant of a smaller value is like putting the cart before
the horse. Furthermore, | believe the financial and environmental
cost of moving the library cannot be justified, and I think it
inappropriate for the Council to fund commercial development.”

The Chair welcomed Councillor Andy Fry to the meeting. His
speech was delivered as follows:

“I think we have made a really poor job of advertising this | think.
And | speak as a newly elected County Councillor, it is my
seventeenth year as a County Councillor, but 1t of September is a
new year as County Councillor. So, all the way through that time |
have supported the library service, the Woodrow Library service
and | speak as a County Councillor for both Redditch Library and
Woodrow Library, but we have made a mess of selling this to the
people. We, as an Authority, have told so many untruths about the
actual library building. The people of Redditch have been told that
the roof is no good, the amount of asbestos is horrific, the archives
had damp in them, and it needed newspaper articles to actually tell
the people of Redditch that this was untrue. The archives are very
important to Redditch because that is our history. It is still unclear
as to where those archives will actually end up. | believe that the
move from the current location to Redditch Town Hall or to the
Community Hub is the wrong one. It is taking the library away from
the people of Redditch. Many people do not come down this side of
Redditch, which is unfortunate, but it is certainly what happens. We
have made a poor job of this. The money has gradually gone up,
and from £4.2m for demolition we now have got to find £5.2m for
transforming this building into a Community Hub. That is £9.4m for
a building that is perfectly good enough. It's a good well used
building that | have spent a lot of money in over the years. | spoke
to Simon Geraghty, who is the Leader of Worcestershire County
Council, about what he knew about this, and he said that he hadn’t
seen the report yet, and that it is in the hands of the Cabinet
Member with responsibility. As a Committee we are asked to make
a decision here, and the Leader of the County Council which we
remember, it will remain a County Council asset, he knows nothing
about it yet, he obviously will in time, but this seems very



Page 22 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

52.

premature. | believe that the move to Redditch Town Hall is the
wrong move for the people of Redditch.”

The Chair explained to Members that a written statement had also
been received from M. Clack and would be read out by the
Democratic Services Officer present. Her statement was delivered
as follows:

‘I am extremely concerned about the proposals being examined by
the scrutiny committee tonight.

My reasons are varied but my biggest concerns are financial.

1. What would be the financial implications for Redditch if the plan
goes ahead and the council fails to rent out or sell the
entertainment/hospitality units included in the new building on the
site of the current library? Considering that the Wetherspoons
chain are trying to sell the Rising Sun pub opposite the site, this
seems to me to be a likely occurrence.

2. Why are we proposing to spend money that should be for
Redditch to buy a site Worcestershire County Council is
responsible for? The library service is the responsibility of
Worcestershire County Council.

The money to buy the site from them could instead be used to
update the town hall into a hub as proposed. Avoiding the
potential liability of a white elephant site with unused
entertainment/ hospitality units draining the town.”

At the end of this item the Chair thanked all those who had attended
as public speakers for their submissions.

REDDITCH TIP LIBRARY DEVELOPMENT - BUSINESS CASE
The Programme Delivery Manager from North Worcestershire
Economic Development and Regeneration and the Head of
Planning, Regeneration and Leisure Services presented the report

regarding the Redditch TIP Library Development.

In doing so the following was highlighted for Members’ attention:



Page 23 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

e The business case had been prepared by Mott McDonald
and the summary documents were due to be submitted to
the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
on 15" October 2022.

e The high level objectives of the Redditch Library
Redevelopment were to improve connectivity between the
Kingfisher Centre and the Conservation Area. The plans
included the demolition of the current library building.
However, it was clarified by Officers that the plan was to
relocate the library to the Town Hall Hub therefore ensuring
future library provision within the Town Centre. The plans
also included a commercial mixed use building including
Food and Beverage (F&B) unit and co-working space.

Members requested further clarification regarding the
arrangements with Worcestershire County Council (WCC) and
the Letter of Understanding (LoU) provided by WCC. The
Interim Director of Finance explained that this letter had been
received by the Authority and that provided the requirements
contained within the letter were met, that WCC would be
supportive of the Town’s Bid to demolish the library. This was of
considerable concern to some Members who felt that it was
premature to agree to endorse a project without the agreement
of WCC. However, it was reported that the Council had been
working with WCC officers for some time and that this project
had been taken very seriously at all points of the process. In
addition to this, it was noted that if WCC did approve the
relocation of the library as outlined in the business case a public
consultation would still have to be undertaken as part of the
statutory process. Members requested whether it would be
possible to view a copy of the LoU with WCC and it was agreed
that this LoU would be circulated to Members of the Committee
following the meeting.

During a robust debate, Members also discussed the following:

e That library provision was a key criterion within the Towns
Bid Funding and the Towns Board made the decisions and
all minutes of their meetings were a matter of public record.
In respect of consultation, Officers explained that before the
original TIP was supported there was consultation in 2019.



Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Page 24 Agenda Item 7

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

Risk — The Interim Director of Finance explained that risks
involved within the projects were being mitigated and that
redesigning and reengineering had been undertaken in order
to meet the new proposed budget. In addition to this, it was
Imperative the project be managed effectively and was key to
the delivery of the project. Members suggested that the
projects can sometimes go over budget and with the
Council’s current financial situation this was a cause for
concern. In addition to this, Members highlighted that it
would take some time to see a return on investment of the
£4.2m required to demolish the library if the rent from F&B
area, was only £29,070. It was queried whether this was
good value for money. Officers explained that the hope was
that these new F&B units and co-working spaces would
encourage footfall within this area of the Town Centre.
Archives of the current library — Officers explained that this
was a matter for WCC and would be included in the
consultation. However, it was confirmed by a Member that
there were archive facilities in the Town Hall if necessary.
Timeline of projects — It was reported that, depending on the
timing of the consultation, the deadline for completion of
construction was 315t March 2026.

Lease — There was a query regarding who owned the lease
to the library building and it was confirmed that it was a 125
year lease owned by the County Council.

Procurement of contractors — Members queried what
process would be undertaken in terms of procurement for
this project and whether local contractors would be used and
if contractors who were procured would have contracts with
conditions that trade unions would find acceptable. The Head
of Legal, Democratic and Property Services confirmed that
procurement would be undertaken through a framework and
that in respect of trade union conditions the Council would
not make those stipulations as it would be up to the
companies to follow the guidelines. It was highlighted that
Local Authorities already met basic criteria of procurement
as part of the Government framework used.

The detailed debate continued, where the green agenda was raised
and highlighted that it was important to look at the long term view.
In addition to this, some Members commented that having other



Page 25 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

services, including the library, within a Town Hall Hub would
generate income for the Council.

Current footfall of the library was discussed, and it was reported
that currently there were 400 visitors per day to the library and it
was queried whether this would be reciprocated in a F&B area.
Officers explained that the early evening economy would be the
main focus of the F&B area.

Some Members felt that public response to the proposals must be
taken into account when considering this report, particularly in light
of the petition that had been initiated by residents who were not in
support of the project. It was also highlighted that it was important
for residents to have the full facts and information available in the
public domain.

Some Committee Members felt that this was a visionary project for
Redditch and that the economic returns were good. However, in
order to be able to move the project forward the submission of the
business case must be made, which was the decision that the
Executive Committee had to make at its next meeting due to be
held on 11" October 2022.

Following conclusion of the debate, it was agreed by some
Members that the Town Hall was currently not being used to is full
capacity however the following amendment was proposed:

RECOMMENDED that
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, having considered the report
advises the Executive Committee NOT to endorse the business

case and not to proceed with this project for the following reasons:

1. The risks are too high, and the financial returns are too low
and;

2. The Council does not have the Authority from Worcestershire
County Council to proceed to demolish the library in the

Town Centre.

A named vote was requested and recorded as follows:



Page 26 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

53.

Members voting FOR the recommendation:

Councillors Baker, Harvey and Hartnett (3)

Members voting AGAINST the recommendation:

Councillors Altaf, Chalk, Clayton, Court and Pearman (5)

Members voting to ABSTAIN on the recommendation:

No Councillors (0)
The recommendation was therefore lost.

Following consideration of this item a brief adjournment was
taken from 20:06 to 20:11.

TOWN HALL HUB

The Interim Director of Finance presented the report in respect of
the Town Hall Hub. During consideration of this item the proposals
for the Redditch Town Hall were outlined for Members information.
As had been discussed earlier in the meeting, the Town Hall was
not currently being used to capacity and the proposals presented
within the report included the potential for external organisations to
rent space within the proposed Community Hub. These external
organisations could potentially include representatives from the
NHS and WCC. Also included in the proposals was a new
Members’ Suite, which could be used for any meeting.

Officers reported that the cost of the refurbishment project would be
£5.2m and would be funded by capital receipts and the sale of
Council assets which had been valued by Savills as between
£3.45m and £5.65m. Any timing differences could be funded
through short term borrowing. It was further explained that revenue
costs to run the Town Hall were currently £878k per year, however
this amount would be significantly reduced, by approximately £400k
as the other organisations would be responsible for some of the
revenue costs in the future. Members raised that there was no
mention of inflation rates included in the proposed costs.



Page 27 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

Some Members felt that this was an excellent opportunity to half
revenue costs for the Council by £400k going forward which would
significantly help the Council’s present budget deficit and provide
better value for money for Redditch and its residents. In addition to
this, it was highlighted that Community Hubs were being
established all over the country and that it was a great opportunity
to create a vibrant workplace alongside wider financial and social
benefits.

In respect of the relocation of the Library it was discussed that, as
indicated earlier in the meeting that this was still to be agreed by
WCC and would still be subject to consultation.

Although Members agreed that a Community Hub would be a good
asset for the community, concerns were raised by some Members
regarding the costs of the demolition of the current library combined
with the costs of the Town Hall Hub and whether this was good
value for money for residents. It was with this in mind that the
following recommendation was proposed:

RECOMMENDED that:

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, having considered the
report advises the Executive Committee not to proceed with this
project as currently described in this report, which includes the
provision of a Library, instead it advises to submit a further report
for the re-purposing of the Town Hall update/ Town Hall Hub for
community uses as described in the report but without a library.

On being put to the vote this recommendation was lost.

A further vote was then carried out in respect of the
recommendations contained within the report and it was

RECOMMENDED to the Executive Committee that:

1) subject to the agreement of the Town’s Fund Library
Business case, which itself is subject to the required
public consultation, the Town Hall be repurposed as a
Community Hub;



Page 28 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

54.

55.

2) subject to approval of recommendation 3 below,
authority be delegated to the Section 151 Officer and the
Head of Legal, Democratic and Property Services to
finalise and implement the community hub business
case and to procure and appoint contractors to
undertake and deliver the works;

The Executive Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that

3) building works on the Town Hall of up to £5.2m, (or
reduced amount in the event that for any reason the
Town’s Fund Library Business Case does not proceed to
fruition) to be funded from Capital Receipts, for the
purpose of remodelling the Town Hall in accordance
with the Town’s Fund Library business case, be
approved; and

3) the capital programme is increased by £5.2m to deliver
these works.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES AND SCRUTINY OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE'S WORK PROGRAMME - SELECTING
ITEMS FOR SCRUTINY

The minutes for the Executive Committee meeting the Executive
Committee's Work Programme were submitted for Members’
consideration.

RESOLVED that

the contents of the Executive Committee Minutes of the
meetings held on Tuesday 6" September 2022 and the
Executive Committee's Work Programme be noted.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee's Work Programme was
submitted for Members’ consideration.



Page 29 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Thursday, 6th October, 2022

RESOLVED that

the contents of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee's Work
Programme be noted.

The Meeting commenced at 6.30 pm
and closed at 8.55 pm




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Questions on Notice
	6 Appropriation of Land off Ipsley Church Lane for Planning Purposes
	P2038.51 - Proposed Redditch Cemetery, Ipsley Church Lane - Appropriation - Site Details

	7 Overview and Scrutiny Committee

